



# PERTH, FRIDAY, 12 DECEMBER 2014 No. 198

PUBLISHED BY AUTHORITY JOHN A. STRIJK, GOVERNMENT PRINTER AT 12.00 NOON

© STATE OF WESTERN AUSTRALIA

#### CONTENTS

#### PART 1

	Page
Caravan Parks and Camping Grounds Amendment Regulations (No. 2) 2014	4720
Exmouth Public Cemetery Amendment Local Law 2014	4737
Fire and Emergency Services Amendment Regulations 2014	4712
Food Amendment Regulations 2014	4713
Gas Standards (Gasfitting and Consumer Gas Installations) Amendment Regulations	
(No. 3) 2014	4711
Legal Profession Amendment Rules (No. 2) 2014	4718
Local Government (Constitution) Amendment Regulations 2014	4733
Magistrates Court (Civil Proceedings) Amendment Rules (No. 5) 2014	4716
Magistrates Court (Minor Cases Procedure) Amendment Rules (No. 2) 2014	4717
Poisons Amendment Regulations (No. 5) 2014	4714
Salaries and Allowances Amendment Regulations (No. 2) 2014	4738
Spent Convictions Amendment Regulations 2014	4719
Tobacco Products Control Amendment Regulations (No. 4) 2014	4715
Vocational Education and Training (Colleges) Amendment Regulations 2014	4739
Vocational Education and Training (General) Amendment Regulations (No. 3) 2014	4742

#### $\rm PART\;2$

Agriculture and Food	4744
Consumer Protection	4745
Culture and the Arts	4745
Deceased Estates	4754
Justice	4747
Local Government	
Marine/Maritime	
Minerals and Petroleum	
Parliament	
Planning	
Premier and Cabinet	
romier and capillotinical and capillotinical and capital and capit	1.01

#### IMPORTANT COPYRIGHT NOTICE

© State of Western Australia

This work is copyright. Apart from any use as permitted under the *Copyright Act 1968*, no part may be reproduced by any process without written permission from the Attorney General for Western Australia. Inquiries in the first instance should be directed to the Government Printer, State Law Publisher, 10 William St, Perth 6000.

#### **PUBLISHING DETAILS**

The Western Australian *Government Gazette* is published by State Law Publisher for the State of Western Australia on Tuesday and Friday of each week unless disrupted by Public Holidays or unforeseen circumstances.

Special *Government Gazettes* containing notices of an urgent or particular nature are published periodically.

The following guidelines should be followed to ensure publication in the *Government Gazette*.

- Material submitted to the Executive Council prior to gazettal will require a copy of the signed Executive Council Minute Paper and in some cases the Parliamentary Counsel's Certificate.
- Copy must be lodged with the Sales and Editorial Section, State Law Publisher no later than 12 noon on Wednesday (Friday edition) or 12 noon on Friday (Tuesday edition).

Delivery address: State Law Publisher

Basement Level,

10 William St. Perth, 6000

Telephone: 6552 6000 Fax: 9321 7536

- Inquiries regarding publication of notices can be directed to the Publications Officer on (08) 6552 6012.
- Lengthy or complicated notices should be forwarded early to allow for preparation. Failure to observe this request could result in the notice being held over.

If it is necessary through isolation or urgency to fax copy, confirmation is not required by post. *If original copy is forwarded later and published, the cost will be borne by the advertiser.* 



### **GOVERNMENT GAZETTE**

### PUBLISHING DETAILS FOR CHRISTMAS 2014 AND NEW YEAR HOLIDAY PERIOD 2015

Publishing Dates and times Closing Dates and Times for copy

Tuesday, 23 December 2014 at 12 noon Tuesday, 30 December 2014 at 12 noon Tuesday, 6 January 2015 at 12 noon Friday, 19 December 2014 at 12 noon Wednesday, 24 December 2014 at 12 noon Friday, 2 January 2015 at 12 noon

# — PART 1 —

### **CONSUMER PROTECTION**

CP301\*

Gas Standards Act 1972

### Gas Standards (Gasfitting and Consumer Gas Installations) Amendment Regulations (No. 3) 2014

Made by the Governor in Executive Council.

#### 1. Citation

These regulations are the *Gas Standards (Gasfitting and Consumer Gas Installations) Amendment Regulations (No. 3) 2014.* 

#### 2. Commencement

These regulations come into operation as follows —

- (a) regulations 1 and 2 on the day on which these regulations are published in the *Gazette*;
- (b) the rest of the regulations on the day after that day.

#### 3. **Regulations amended**

These regulations amend the *Gas Standards (Gasfitting and Consumer Gas Installations) Regulations 1999.* 

#### 4. Schedule 6 amended

(1) In Schedule 6 clause 604A(1) delete the definitions of:

child care centre child care service

family day care service

(2) In Schedule 6 clause 604A(1) insert in alphabetical order:

child care centre means a place where ----

 (a) an education and care service as defined in the *Education and Care Services National Law (Western Australia)* section 5(1) operates, unless the place is a family day care residence, as defined in that section; or

(b) a child care service, as defined in the *Child Care* Services Act 2007 section 4, is provided;

N. HAGLEY, Clerk of the Executive Council.

### FIRE AND EMERGENCY SERVICES

#### FE301\*

Fire and Emergency Services Act 1998

### Fire and Emergency Services Amendment Regulations 2014

Made by the Governor in Executive Council.

#### 1. Citation

These regulations are the *Fire and Emergency Services Amendment Regulations 2014.* 

#### 2. Commencement

These regulations come into operation as follows —

- (a) regulations 1 and 2 on the day on which these regulations are published in the *Gazette*;
- (b) the rest of the regulations on the day after that day.

#### **3.** Regulations amended

These regulations amend the *Fire and Emergency Services Regulations 1998*.

#### 4. **Regulation 17 inserted**

After regulation 16 insert:

#### 17. Disclosure of information (Act s. 39(2)(d))

For the purposes of section 39(2)(d) of the Act, a person may disclose information to a police officer for any of the following purposes —

- (a) the investigation of a fire or explosion;
- (b) the investigation of a fire-related death;

- (c) the investigation of a suspected offence under any of the following provisions
  - (i) *The Criminal Code* section 171, 444, 445A, 445, 454 or 455;
  - (ii) the *Bush Fires Act 1954* section 22B, 27B or 32.

R. KENNEDY, Clerk of the Executive Council.

#### HEALTH

HE301\*

Food Act 2008

### **Food Amendment Regulations 2014**

Made by the Governor in Executive Council.

#### 1. Citation

These regulations are the Food Amendment Regulations 2014.

#### 2. Commencement

These regulations come into operation as follows —

- (a) regulations 1 and 2 on the day on which these regulations are published in the *Gazette*;
- (b) the rest of the regulations on the day after that day.

#### 3. **Regulations amended**

These regulations amend the Food Regulations 2009.

#### 4. Schedule 2 amended

In Schedule 2 amend the provisions listed in the Table as set out in the Table.

Provision	Delete	Insert
Sch. 2 it. 1	\$140	\$154
Sch. 2 it. 2	\$140	\$154
Sch. 2 it. 3	\$140	\$154

Table

Provision	Delete	Insert
Sch. 2 it. 4	\$50	\$55
Sch. 2 it. 5	\$140	\$154

R. KENNEDY, Clerk of the Executive Council.

HE302\*

Poisons Act 1964

### Poisons Amendment Regulations (No. 5) 2014

Made by the Governor in Executive Council.

#### 1. Citation

These regulations are the *Poisons Amendment Regulations* (No. 5) 2014.

#### 2. Commencement

- (a) regulations 1 and 2 on the day on which these regulations are published in the *Gazette*;
- (b) the rest of the regulations on the day after that day.

#### **3.** Regulations amended

These regulations amend the Poisons Regulations 1965.

#### 4. **Regulation 39AA inserted**

After regulation 38P insert:

# **39AA.** Sale, supply of Sch. 4 poison without prescription authorised for influenza virus vaccine administered by pharmacist

Despite regulation 36(1), a pharmacist is authorised to sell or supply a poison included in Schedule 4 to a person without a prescription if —

- (a) the poison is contained in an influenza virus vaccine; and
- (b) the vaccine is administered to the person by the pharmacist; and

(c) there is compliance with each provision of the Pharmacist Vaccination Code published under the authority of the CEO on the department's website.

Note:

The department's website address is <http://www.health.wa.gov.au>.

R. KENNEDY, Clerk of the Executive Council.

HE303\*

Tobacco Products Control Act 2006

### **Tobacco Products Control Amendment Regulations (No. 4) 2014**

Made by the Governor in Executive Council.

#### 1. Citation

These regulations are the *Tobacco Products Control Amendment Regulations (No. 4) 2014.* 

#### 2. Commencement

These regulations come into operation as follows —

- (a) regulations 1 and 2 on the day on which these regulations are published in the *Gazette*;
- (b) the rest of the regulations on the day after that day.

#### 3. **Regulations amended**

These regulations amend the *Tobacco Products Control Regulations 2006*.

#### 4. Various fees amended

Amend the provisions listed in the Table as set out in the Table.

I abit		
Provision	Delete	Insert
r. 25(1)(a)	\$51.00	\$56.10
r. 25(1)(b)	\$51.00	\$56.10
r. 25(1)(c)	\$127.50	\$140.25

Table

Provision	Delete	Insert
r. 25(2)(a)	\$153.00	\$168.30
r. 25(2)(b)	\$153.00	\$168.30
r. 25(2)(c)	\$383.00	\$421.30
r. 26(a)	\$173.50	\$190.85
r. 26(b)	\$173.50	\$190.85
r. 26(c)	\$434.00	\$477.40
r. 27	\$51.00	\$56.10
r. 28	\$25.50	\$28.05
r. 29	\$25.50	\$28.05

R. KENNEDY, Clerk of the Executive Council.

### JUSTICE

JU301\*

Magistrates Court (Civil Proceedings) Act 2004

### Magistrates Court (Civil Proceedings) Amendment Rules (No. 5) 2014

Made by the Magistrates Court in accordance with the *Magistrates Court Act 2004* section 39.

#### 1. Citation

These rules are the *Magistrates Court (Civil Proceedings)* Amendment Rules (No. 5) 2014.

#### 2. Commencement

- (a) rules 1 and 2 on the day on which these rules are published in the *Gazette*;
- (b) the rest of the rules on the day after that day.

#### 3. Rules amended

These rules amend the *Magistrates Court (Civil Proceedings) Rules 2005.* 

#### 4. Rule 95F amended

Delete rule 95F(3) and insert:

(3) If the case is taken to be dismissed under subrule (1) or (2), the Principal Registrar is to take it off the Inactive Cases List.

Dated: 4 December 2014.

Magistrates' signatures:

STEVEN HEATH, Chief Magistrate. ELIZABETH WOODS, Deputy Chief Magistrate. RICHARD BAYLY, Magistrate. KEVIN TAVENER, Magistrate.

JU302\*

Magistrates Court (Civil Proceedings) Act 2004

### Magistrates Court (Minor Cases Procedure) Amendment Rules (No. 2) 2014

Made by the Magistrates Court in accordance with the *Magistrates Court Act 2004* section 39.

#### 1. Citation

These rules are the *Magistrates Court (Minor Cases Procedure)* Amendment Rules (No. 2) 2014.

#### 2. Commencement

These rules come into operation as follows —

- (a) rules 1 and 2 on the day on which these rules are published in the *Gazette*;
- (b) the rest of the rules on the day after that day.

#### 3. Rules amended

These rules amend the *Magistrates Court (Minor Cases Procedure) Rules 2005.* 

#### 4. Rule 45F amended

Delete rule 45F(3) and insert:

(3) If your case is taken to be dismissed under subrule (1) or (2), the Principal Registrar is to take it off the Inactive Cases List.

Dated: 4 December 2014.

Magistrates' signatures:

STEVEN HEATH, Chief Magistrate. ELIZABETH WOODS, Deputy Chief Magistrate. RICHARD BAYLY, Magistrate. KEVIN TAVENER, Magistrate.

JU303\*

Legal Profession Act 2008

### Legal Profession Amendment Rules (No. 2) 2014

Made by the Legal Practice Board.

#### 1. Citation

These rules are the *Legal Profession Amendment Rules* (No. 2) 2014.

#### 2. Commencement

- (a) rules 1 and 2 on the day on which these rules are published in the *Gazette*;
- (b) the rest of the rules on the day after that day.

#### 3. Rules amended

These rules amend the Legal Profession Rules 2009.

#### 4. Rule 4 amended

(1) After rule 4(1) insert:

(2A) The fee payable for an application for the grant or renewal of a local practising certificate as specified in

Schedule 1 applies to a local practising certificate that takes effect within the time period specified with that fee.

(2) In rule 4(2) delete "practice" and insert:

practising

#### 5. Schedule 1 amended

In Schedule 1 clause 1 in the definition of *standard fee* delete "\$1 000;" and insert:

\$1 000 (before 1 July 2015) or \$1 250 (on or after 1 July 2015);

Made by the Legal Practice Board under Part 17 of the Act for the purposes of section 43 of the Act.

PETER van HATTEM, SC, Member. JOHN LEY, Member. JOHN SYMINTON, Member. BRUNO FIANNACA, SC, Member.

JU304\*

Spent Convictions Act 1988

### **Spent Convictions Amendment Regulations 2014**

Made by the Governor in Executive Council.

#### 1. Citation

These regulations are the *Spent Convictions Amendment Regulations 2014*.

#### 2. Commencement

These regulations come into operation as follows —

- (a) regulations 1 and 2 on the day on which these regulations are published in the *Gazette*;
- (b) the rest of the regulations on the day after that day.

#### 3. **Regulations amended**

These regulations amend the *Spent Convictions Regulations 1992*.

#### 4. Schedule 2 amended

In Schedule 2 in the Notice under section 33(2) under the heading "EXCEPTIONS" delete "licences (for example, security agents, child care providers," and insert:

authorisations (for example, security agents, child care or education and care service providers,

N. HAGLEY, Clerk of the Executive Council.

### LOCAL GOVERNMENT

LG301\*

Caravan Parks and Camping Grounds Act 1995

### **Caravan Parks and Camping Grounds Amendment Regulations (No. 2) 2014**

Made by the Governor in Executive Council.

#### 1. Citation

These regulations are the Caravan Parks and Camping Grounds Amendment Regulations (No. 2) 2014.

#### 2. Commencement

- (a) regulations 1 and 2 on the day on which these regulations are published in the *Gazette*;
- (b) the rest of the regulations on 1 January 2015.

#### **3. Regulations amended**

These regulations amend the *Caravan Parks and Camping Grounds Regulations 1997*.

#### 4. **Regulation 3 replaced**

Delete regulation 3 and insert:

#### 3. Terms used

In these regulations, unless the contrary intention appears —

*ablution block* means a communal building which contains ablution facilities;

*approved,* in relation to a facility, means approved in writing by the local government;

**AS** followed by a designation refers to the Australian Standard having that designation that is published by Standards Australia, as amended from time to time;

*AS/NZS* followed by a designation refers to the Australian/New Zealand Standard having that designation that is published jointly by Standards Australia and Standards New Zealand, as amended from time to time;

*assemble,* in relation to a park home or annexe, means the work required —

- (a) where a park home or annexe arrives at a site in more than one piece, to assemble, position and stabilise the park home or annexe; or
- (b) to position and stabilise the park home or annexe on a site;

*assistance dog* has the meaning given in the *Dog Act 1976* section 8(1);

**Building Code** means the Building Code of Australia which is volumes 1 and 2, as amended from time to time, of the National Construction Code series published by, or on behalf of, the Australian Building Codes Board;

*caravan site* means a site which is marked or intended for the use of a caravan;

*components,* in relation to a park home which is to be, or has been, assembled from parts, means the 2 or more main parts of the park home;

*construct*, in relation to a park home or annexe, includes all work necessary to manufacture or construct the park home or annexe other than such work as is necessary to assemble the park home or annexe at a site;

*cyclonic region* means a cyclonic region within the meaning of AS 4055—1992 "Wind loads for housing";

*design wind speed* means the maximum design gust wind speed for the area calculated in accordance with AS 4055—1992 "Wind loads for housing"; *en suite* means a building on a site which contains ablution, toilet and laundry facilities, or some of these facilities, for the use of the occupiers of that site;

*facility road* means a road or path inside a facility for the use of vehicles;

*form* means a form in Schedule 1;

*flexible annexe* means an annexe made entirely of flexible material except for —

- (a) the supporting frame; and
- (b) any windows or doors, which may be made of flexible or rigid material;

*laundry facility* means facilities for laundering clothes;

*long stay site* means a site at a caravan park which is to be occupied consecutively by the one person or group of persons for any period of time;

nature based park means a facility in an area that —

- (a) is not in close proximity to an area that is built up with structures used for business, industry or dwelling-houses at intervals of less than 100 metres for a distance of 500 metres or more; and
- (b) has been predominantly formed by nature; and
- (c) has limited or controlled artificial light and noise intrusion;

*number plate* means a number plate within the meaning of the *Road Traffic Act 1974*;

*on-site caravan* means a caravan owned by, or under the control of, the licence holder of the caravan park and available for hire at a site on the caravan park;

open sided building means a building that —

- (a) is classified as a Class 10a building under the Building Code; and
- (b) has at least one-third of the area of its perimeter open; and
- (c) has 2 or more sides that would be considered open sides in accordance with the Building Code if the building was a carport;

*overflow area* means an area of a facility specified as an overflow area in the licence for the facility;

*park home park* means a caravan park at which park homes, but not any other caravans or camps, are situated for habitation;

*professional engineer* means a corporate member of the Institution of Engineers Australia, or a person who is eligible to become such a member, who has

appropriate experience and competence to construct, or supervise the construction of, park homes;

*service* means a supply of gas, water or electricity;

*short stay site* means a site at a caravan park which is to be occupied consecutively by the one person or one group of persons, for no longer than 3 consecutive months;

*shower* means a shower or a bath;

*rigid annexe* means an annexe which is not a flexible annexe;

*temporary licence* means a licence referred to in regulation 54;

*transit park* means a facility where an occupier may stay no longer than 3 consecutive nights.

#### 5. Regulation 12 amended

(1) In regulation 12(1) delete "lot" and insert:

lot, as defined in the *Planning and Development Act 2005* section 4(1),

(2) Delete regulation 12(3).

#### 6. Regulation 15 amended

In regulation 15(2) delete the Penalty and insert:

Penalty: for an offence under subregulation (1) or (2): a fine of \$2 000.

#### 7. **Regulation 19 amended**

(1) In regulation 19(1)(f) delete "a guide dog or hearing" and insert:

an assistance

(2) In regulation 19(1)(1) delete "regulations." and insert:

regulations; and

- (3) After regulation 19(1)(1) insert:
  - (m) for a nature based park, all advertising material and other information sources about the facility, the content of which is controlled by the licence

holder, specify each of the following amenities that is not provided for occupiers at the facility —

- (i) toilets;
- (ii) showers;
- (iii) hand basins;
- (iv) washing-up facilities;
- (v) laundry facilities;
- (vi) hot water for showering or for washing-up or laundry facilities;
- (vii) power points;
- (viii) lighting.
- (4) In regulation 19(2) delete the Penalty and insert:

Penalty for an offence under subregulation (1) or (2): a fine of \$2 000.

(5) In regulation 19(1) after each of paragraphs (a) to (j) insert:

and

#### 8. Regulation 25 amended

In regulation 25(5):

(a) delete "a guide dog or hearing" and insert:

an assistance

(b) delete the Penalty and insert:

Penalty for an offence under subregulation (1), (2), (3) or (4): a fine of \$1 000.

#### 9. Regulation 30 amended

In regulation 30(3) delete the Penalty and insert:

Penalty for an offence under subregulation (2) or (3): a fine of \$3 000.

#### 10. Regulation 32 amended

In regulation 32(7) delete the Penalty and insert:

Penalty for an offence under this subregulation: a fine of \$4 000.

#### 11. Regulation 34 amended

After regulation 34(3) insert:

(4) After 1 January 2015 a person must not, in a nature based park, attach, or cause to be attached, a rigid annexe to anything other than a caravan that is the manager's residence.

Penalty: a fine of \$3 000.

(5) Subregulation (4) does not apply to the attachment of a rigid annexe after 1 January 2015 that is done in accordance with approval given before that day.

#### 12. Regulation 36 amended

In regulation 36(7) delete the Penalty and insert:

Penalty for an offence under this subregulation: a fine of \$4 000.

#### 13. **Regulation 37 amended**

In regulation 37(2) delete the Penalty and insert:

Penalty for an offence under this subregulation: a fine of \$3 000.

#### 14. **Regulation 39 amended**

After regulation 39(2) insert:

(3) After 1 January 2015 a person must not, in a nature based park, construct, or cause to be constructed, a carport or pergola other than a carport or pergola for the manager's residence.

Penalty: a fine of \$3 000.

(4) Subregulation (3) does not apply to the construction of a carport or pergola after 1 January 2015 that is done in accordance with approval given before that day.

#### 15. Regulation 40 amended

After regulation 40(2) insert:

(3) After 1 January 2015 a person must not, in a nature based park, construct, or cause to be constructed, a storage shed other than a storage shed for the operation of the facility.

Penalty: a fine of \$1 000.

(4) Subregulation (3) does not apply to the construction of a storage shed after 1 January 2015 if it is done in accordance with approval given before that day.

#### 16. **Regulation 43 amended**

In regulation 43(3) delete the Penalty and insert:

Penalty for an offence under this subregulation: a fine of \$4 000.

#### 17. Regulation 49 deleted

Delete regulation 49.

#### 18. Regulation 51 replaced

Delete regulation 51 and insert:

#### 51. Calculation of camping sites

The maximum number of camping sites endorsed by a local government on a licence for use at a facility is not to exceed —

- (a) for a nature based park, one site for each
  50 square metres of camping ground available at the facility; and
- (b) for any other facility, one site for each
  25 square metres of camping ground available at the facility.

#### 19. Regulation 59 amended

(1) In regulation 59(9) delete "Local" and insert:

Magistrates

- (2) Delete regulation 59(10) and insert:
  - (10) An application made to the Magistrates Court under this regulation is to be made and dealt with under the *Magistrates Court (Civil Proceedings) Rules 2005* Part 21 Division 3.

#### 20. Schedule 1 amended

In Schedule 1 at the end of Form 1 insert:

Only necessary	3. A management plan containing details about these	
for application	matters in relation to the facility:	
for nature based	(a) market segment;	
park licence	(b) the amenities that are proposed to be provided, or	
	not provided, at the facility;	
	(c) site planning;	
	(d) environmental impact and sustainability;	
	(e) waste management;	
	(f) traffic management;	
	(g) risk management;	
	(h) length of stay of occupiers.	

#### 21. Schedule 7 clause 5A inserted

(1) After Schedule 7 clause 4 insert:

#### 5A. Length of stay at nature based parks

- (1) A person cannot be an occupier at a nature based park for more than 28 nights in total in a 3 month period starting on the first day that the person occupies a site at the facility.
- (2) Subclause (1) does not apply to the manager of the facility.
- (3) Subclause (1) applies only to stays that commence on or after 1 January 2015.
- (2) In Schedule 7 clause 11(1) delete "facility" and insert:

facility, other than a nature based park,

- (3) In Schedule 7 after clause 11(3) insert:
  - (4) Buildings on a nature based park may be only of the following types
    - (a) manager's house;
    - (b) any of the following buildings classified as a Class 10a building under the Building Code —
      - (i) toilets;
      - (ii) an ablution block;
      - (iii) washing-up facilities;

- (iv) a carport or pergola;
- (v) a storage shed;
- (c) a campers' kitchen, if approved.
- (5) A building referred to in subclause (4)(b)(i), (ii) or (iii) or(c) must not be located on a site.
- (6) A carport, pergola or storage shed may be on the manager's residence site at a nature based park but otherwise must not be on a site.
- (7) Subclauses (4), (5) and (6) do not apply to a building on a nature based park if the building's construction and location is in accordance with approval given before 1 January 2015.

#### 22. Schedule 7 clause 12 replaced

Delete Schedule 7 clause 12 and insert:

#### 12. Storage sheds

- (1) A storage shed
  - (a) is not to exceed 6 square metres in area and, unless forming part of a carport, 2.1 metres in height; and
  - (b) is to be built of light weight portable material.
- (2) There must be no more than one storage shed on a nature based park.
- (3) Subclause (2) does not apply to a storage shed on a nature based park if the shed's presence is in accordance with approval given before 1 January 2015.

#### 23. Schedule 7 clause 15 amended

- (1) Before Schedule 7 clause 15(1) insert:
  - (1A) This clause applies to facilities other than nature based parks.
- (2) In Schedule 7 clause 15(5) delete "or a nature based park".
  - Note: The heading to amended Schedule 7 clause 15 is to read: Facility roads in facilities other than nature based parks

#### 24. Schedule 7 clause 16A inserted

After Schedule 7 clause 15 insert:

#### 16A. Facility roads in nature based parks

(1) This clause applies to nature based parks.

- (2) A facility entrance road is to be at least 6 metres wide or a narrower width that is approved.
- (3) A facility road which is a one way road is to be at least 4 metres wide or a narrower width that is approved.
- (4) A facility road which is a 2 way road is to be at least 6 metres wide or a narrower width that is approved.
- (5) A local government may approve of a narrower width under subclause (2), (3) or (4) for a nature based park only if it is satisfied that the management plan for the facility adequately deals with traffic access and egress.
- (6) A facility road is to be constructed and maintained as is approved but need not be paved or sealed.

#### 25. Schedule 7 clause 19 replaced

Delete Schedule 7 clause 19 and insert:

#### **19.** Location of toilets and showers

- There is to be at least one toilet and one shower within 90 metres of each site on a facility other than a nature based park.
- (2) The location of toilets and showers in a nature based park is to be as approved.
- (3) Subclauses (1) and (2) apply despite anything else in this Division.

#### 26. Schedule 7 clause 23 replaced

Delete Schedule 7 clause 23 and insert:

# 23. Number of toilets, showers, hand basins at nature based parks

- (1) A nature based park is to have at least 2 toilets for every 20 sites, unless otherwise approved.
- Note: Clause 47 applies if a local government gives approval for a nature based park to have fewer than 2 toilets for every 20 sites.
- (2) A nature based park is to have at least as many showers and hand basins as is approved.
- (3) Subclause (1) does not apply to a nature based park the licence for which was granted before 1 January 2015 until the licence is transferred or a new licence is granted in relation to that facility.

#### 27. Schedule 7 clause 24 amended

- (1) Delete Schedule 7 clause 24(d) and insert:
  - (d) hot water (not less than 45° Celsius), unless otherwise approved for a nature based park; and
  - (ea) cold running water; and
- (2) In Schedule 7 clause 24 after each of paragraphs (a), (b) and (c) insert:

and

#### 28. Schedule 7 clause 26 amended

Delete Schedule 7 clause 26(1)(b) and insert:

- (b) hot water (not less than 45° Celsius), unless otherwise approved for a nature based park; and
- (c) cold running water.

#### 29. Schedule 7 clause 27 amended

(1) In Schedule 7 clause 27(1) delete "point." and insert:

point, unless otherwise approved for a nature based park.

(2) In Schedule 7 clause 27(2) delete "If" and insert:

Unless otherwise approved for a nature based park, if

(3) In Schedule 7 clause 27(3) delete "it." and insert:

it, unless otherwise approved for a nature based park.

#### 30. Schedule 7 clause 30 amended

In Schedule 7 clause 30(1) delete "ground" and insert:

ground, other than a nature based park,

#### 31. Schedule 7 clause 31 amended

(1) In Schedule 7 clause 31(1) delete "sites." and insert:

sites, unless otherwise approved for a nature based park.

(2) In Schedule 7 clause 31(2) delete "site." and insert:

site, unless otherwise approved for a nature based park.

- (3) Delete Schedule 7 clause 31(3)(b) and insert:
  - (b) hot water (not less than 45° Celsius), unless otherwise approved for a nature based park; and
  - (ca) cold running water; and
- (4) After Schedule 7 clause 31(3)(a) insert:

and

#### 32. Schedule 7 clause 32 amended

After Schedule 7 clause 32(3) insert:

(4) Subclauses (1), (2) and (3) apply to a nature based park unless otherwise approved but the local government is not to give its approval unless it is satisfied that it is not reasonably practicable for a power source for lighting to be provided at the facility.

#### 33. Schedule 7 clause 35 amended

(1) In Schedule 7 clause 35(3) and (4) delete "facility" and insert:

facility, other than a nature based park,

- (2) After Schedule 7 clause 35(4) insert:
  - (5) A nature based park is to have at least one extinguisher in an area accessible to all persons in the facility.

#### 34. Schedule 7 clause 38 amended

In Schedule 7 clause 38 in the definition of *potable water* delete "drink" and insert:

drinking

#### 35. Schedule 7 clause 46 amended

In Schedule 7 clause 46(1)(a) delete "that" and insert:

than

#### **36.** Schedule 7 clause 47 replaced

Delete Schedule 7 clause 47 and insert:

#### 47. Communal chemical soil waste dump point

- (1) Subclause (2) applies to all facilities except
  - (a) park home parks; and
  - (b) transit parks; and
  - (c) nature based parks that have at least 2 toilets for every 20 sites.
- (2) There is to be a communal chemical soil waste dump point that is
  - (a) in accordance with the requirements of AS/NZS 3500.2.2; and
  - (b) connected to an approved waste water disposal system; and
  - (c) readily accessible to all occupiers at the facility.
- (3) Subclause (2) does not apply to a nature based park the licence for which was granted before 1 January 2015 until the licence is transferred or a new licence is granted in relation to that facility.

#### 37. Schedule 7 clause 48 amended

- (1) In Schedule 7 clause 48 delete "Where" and insert:
  - (1) If
- (2) At the end of Schedule 7 clause 48 insert:
  - (2) The requirement in subclause (1) for the use of anchor points applies to a nature based park unless otherwise approved but the local government is not to give its approval unless it is satisfied, having regard to the facility's risk management strategy, that anchor points are not necessary.

#### **38.** Schedule 8 deleted

Delete Schedule 8.

#### **39.** Various penalties amended

In the provisions listed in the Table after "Penalty:" insert:

a fine of

Table		
r. 9	r. 10	
r. 12(1)	r. 14	
r. 16	r. 17	
r. 18	r. 20	
r. 21	r. 22	
r. 23	r. 24	
r. 26	r. 27	
r. 28	r. 29	
r. 32(1), (1a), (2), (3), (4) and (6)	r. 33(2)	
r. 34(3)	r. 36(1), (2), (3) and (4)	
r. 38	r. 39(2)	
r. 40(2)	r. 44(1)	
r. 60		

R. KENNEDY, Clerk of the Executive Council.

LG302\*

Local Government Act 1995

### Local Government (Constitution) Amendment Regulations 2014

Made by the Governor in Executive Council.

#### 1. Citation

These regulations are the *Local Government (Constitution)* Amendment Regulations 2014.

#### 2. Commencement

- (a) regulations 1 and 2 on the day on which these regulations are published in the *Gazette*;
- (b) the rest of the regulations on the day after that day.

#### 3. **Regulations amended**

These regulations amend the *Local Government (Constitution) Regulations 1998*.

#### 4. **Regulation 4 amended**

After regulation 4(2) insert:

(3) If, on the commencement of the order referred to in subregulation (1), a part of the area of a district ("district A") (which is not abolished) is included in the area of the new district ("district B"), then on that commencement any Crown land that is in that part of district A and that, immediately before that commencement, is under the care, control and management of local government A becomes under the care, control and management of local government B on the same conditions to which the care, control and management of that Crown land by local government A were subject.

#### 5. Regulation 5 amended

- (1) In regulation 5(4):
  - (a) before paragraph (a) insert:
    - (aa) any Crown land that is in that part of district B and that, immediately before commencement, is under the care, control and management of local government B becomes under the care, control and management of local government A on the same conditions to which the care, control and management of that Crown land by local government B were subject; and
  - (b) in paragraph (c) delete "town planning scheme that is in force under the *Town Planning and Development Act 1928*—" and insert:

local planning scheme that is in force under the *Planning and Development Act 2005* —

(2) In regulation 5(4) after each of paragraphs (a) to (c) and (c)(i) insert:

and

#### 6. **Regulation 6 amended**

(1) In regulation 6(4)(d) delete "town planning scheme that is in force under the *Town Planning and Development Act 1928*—" and insert:

local planning scheme that is in force under the *Planning and Development Act 2005* —

- (2) In regulation 6(5):
  - (a) before paragraph (a) insert:
    - (aa) any Crown land that is in that part of district A and that, immediately before commencement, is under the care, control and management of local government A becomes under the care, control and management of local government B on the same conditions to which the care, control and management of that Crown land by local government A were subject; and
  - (b) in paragraph (c) delete "town planning scheme that is in force under the *Town Planning and Development Act 1928*—" and insert:

local planning scheme that is in force under the *Planning and Development Act 2005* —

(3) In regulation 6 after each of subregulations (4)(a) to (i),
 (4)(d)(i), (5)(a) to (d) and (5)(c)(i) insert:

and

#### 7. **Regulation 7 amended**

- (1) Delete regulation 7(1) and insert:
  - (1) In this regulation —

commencement means ----

(a) in subregulation (2), the commencement of the order referred to in subregulation (2);

- (b) in subregulation (3), the commencement of the order referred to in subregulation (3).
- (2) After regulation 7(2) insert:
  - (3) If as a result of an order made under section 2.1 an area of the State is included in the area of another district ("district A") and the area of the State includes
    - (a) a part of the area of a district ("**district B**") the boundaries of which are changed by the order; or
    - (b) the whole, or a part, of the area of a district ("district C") that is abolished by the order; or
    - (c) a combination of the areas described in paragraphs (a) and (b),

then on commencement —

- (d) the local laws that applied in that part of the area of district B immediately before the commencement continue to apply in respect of that part of the area of district B that is included in district A; and
- (e) the local laws that applied in the whole, or that part, of the area of district C immediately before the commencement continue to apply in respect of the whole, or that part, of the area of district C that is included in district A; and
- (f) the local laws of local government C continue to apply in respect of the whole, or that part, of the area of district C that is included in district A; and
- (g) the local laws of local governments B and C, in so far as they continue to apply in respect of those areas
  - (i) are to be administered and enforced by local government A; and
  - subject to Part 3 Division 2 of the Act, may be amended or repealed by local government A,

as if they were local laws of local government A; and

- (h) until the local laws of local government A provide otherwise, the local laws of local government A do not apply in respect of —
  - (i) that part of the area of district B that is included in district A; or
  - (ii) the whole, or that part, of the area of district C that is included in district A.

- (3) In regulation 7(2):
  - (a) after paragraph (a) insert:

or

(b) after each of paragraphs (d) and (e) insert:

and

#### 8. **Regulation 11G amended**

After regulation 11G(1)(a) insert:

and

R. KENNEDY, Clerk of the Executive Council.

LG303\*

#### CEMETERIES ACT 1986 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1995

#### Shire of Exmouth

EXMOUTH PUBLIC CEMETERY AMENDMENT LOCAL LAW 2014

Under the powers conferred by the *Cemeteries Act 1986* and the *Local Government Act 1995*, and all other powers enabling it, the Council of the Shire of Exmouth resolved on 20 November 2014 to make the following local law—

#### 1. Citation

This local law is cited as the Shire of Exmouth Public Cemetery Amendment Local Law 2014.

#### 2. Commencement

This local law comes into operation 14 days after its publication in the  ${\it Government}$   ${\it Gazette}.$ 

#### 3. Cemeteries Local Law amended

The Shire of Exmouth Local Laws Relating to the Exmouth Public Cemetery published in the *Government Gazette* on 10 July 2000 is referred to as the principal local law. The principal local law is amended as follows.

#### 4. Clause 8.2 amended

Clause 8.2 is deleted and replaced with the following—

#### 8.2 Assistance Animals

Clause 8.1 does not apply to an animal who is being used as an assistance animal as defined in the *Disability Discrimination Act 1992 (Commonwealth)*.

Dated: 20 November 2014.

The Common Seal of the Shire of Exmouth was affixed by authority of a resolution of the Council in the presence of—

### **PUBLIC SERVICE**

#### PS301\*

Salaries and Allowances Act 1975

### Salaries and Allowances Amendment Regulations (No. 2) 2014

Made by the Governor in Executive Council.

#### 1. Citation

These regulations are the Salaries and Allowances Amendment Regulations (No. 2) 2014.

#### 2. Commencement

- (a) regulations 1 and 2 on the day on which these regulations are published in the *Gazette*;
- (b) the rest of the regulations on 15 December 2014.

#### 3. **Regulations amended**

These regulations amend the Salaries and Allowances Regulations 1975.

#### 4. **Regulation 3 amended**

In regulation 3 in the Schedule delete the item for "*Museum Act 1969*".

R. KENNEDY, Clerk of the Executive Council.

#### TRAINING

#### TA301\*

Vocational Education and Training Act 1996

### Vocational Education and Training (Colleges) Amendment Regulations 2014

Made by the Governor in Executive Council.

#### 1. Citation

These regulations are the Vocational Education and Training (Colleges) Amendment Regulations 2014.

#### 2. Commencement

- (a) regulations 1 and 2 on the day on which these regulations are published in the *Gazette*;
- (b) the rest of the regulations on the day after that day.

#### **3. Regulations amended**

These regulations amend the Vocational Education and Training (Colleges) Regulations 1996.

#### 4. **Regulation 3 amended**

In regulation 3(1) in the definition of *secondary school aged person* delete "their compulsory education period," and insert:

the calendar year in which their compulsory education period expires,

#### 5. **Regulation 5 amended**

In regulation 5 delete the definition of *course* and insert:

course means a category 1, 2 or 3 course.

#### 6. **Regulation 9 amended**

In regulation 9(2) delete "Division 2".

#### 7. Part 3 Division 2 Subdivision 1 deleted

Delete Part 3 Division 2 Subdivision 1.

#### 8. Part 3 Division 2 Subdivision 2 heading deleted

Delete the heading to Part 3 Division 2 Subdivision 2.

#### 9. Regulation 13B replaced

Delete regulation 13B and insert:

#### 13B. Course fees for 2015 — Schedule 1

- (1) The course fee for a unit of a course to be commenced by a student in 2015 is as follows —
  - (a) the relevant fee determined in accordance with Schedule 1 item 2, 3, 4 or 5 (the *unit fee*);
  - (b) if more than one unit is to be commenced the sum of the unit fees for each unit to be commenced.
- (2) Subregulation (1) does not apply to a course or unit for which there is a determination in force under regulation 15A.
- (3) Despite subregulation (1), the maximum amount of course fee payable in 2015 by a student who is not a secondary school aged person is \$7 700 for each course, that the student is enrolled in one or more than one unit of, that, if successfully completed, would result in the conferral of a prescribed VET qualification of a Diploma or Advanced Diploma.
- (4) Despite subregulation (1), the maximum amount of course fee payable in 2015 by a student who is a secondary school aged person is \$410.

#### 10. Regulation 13 amended

- (1) Delete regulation 13(1).
- (2) In regulation 13(2):
  - (a) in paragraph (a) delete "52626WA"; and
  - (b) in paragraph (b) delete "52379".
- (3) In regulation 13(3)(a) after "enrolled" insert:

on a full-time basis

#### 11. Regulation 24A amended

(1) In regulation 24A in the definition of *payment period* delete "due;" and insert:

due, or a period of up to 12 months (if within the same calendar year);

- 4741
- (2) In regulation 24A in the definition of *unforeseen circumstances* delete "regulation 25(2)." and insert:

regulation 25(3).

#### 12. Regulation 25 replaced

Delete regulation 25 and insert:

# 25. Full refund of certain fees if withdrawal within allowed period

- (1) A person enrolled for a whole of course is entitled to a full refund of all fees paid in respect of the payment period for that course if within the allowed period the person withdraws from the course.
- (2) A person enrolled for a unit is entitled to a full refund of all fees paid in respect of that unit or a payment period for that unit if within the allowed period the person withdraws from the unit.
- (3) For the purpose of subregulations (1) and (2) the allowed period
  - (a) for a course is the period ending 20% of the way through the payment period; and
  - (b) for a unit is the period ending 20% of the way through the period during which that unit is undertaken.

#### 13. **Regulation 26 amended**

In regulation 26(1) and (2) delete "regulation 25(2)," and insert:

regulation 25(3),

Note: The heading to regulation 26 is to read:

#### Pro rata refund of fees if withdrawal after allowed period

#### 14. Schedule 1 amended

- (1) Delete Schedule 1 Division 1.
- (2) Delete the heading to Schedule 1 Division 2.
- (3) In Schedule 1 amend the provisions listed in the Table as set out in the Table.

Table		
Provision	Delete	Insert
Sch. 1 Div. 2 it. 2	5.53	5.67
Sch. 1 Div. 2 it. 3(a)	2.49	3.09
Sch. 1 Div. 2 it. 3(b)	1.25	1.55
Sch. 1 Div. 2 it. 4(a)	3.92	4.65
Sch. 1 Div. 2 it. 4(b)	1.96	2.32
Sch. 1 Div. 2 it. 5	0.20	0.21

R. KENNEDY, Clerk of the Executive Council.

TA302\*

Vocational Education and Training Act 1996

### Vocational Education and Training (General) Amendment Regulations (No. 3) 2014

Made by the Governor in Executive Council.

#### 1. Citation

These regulations are the *Vocational Education and Training* (General) Amendment Regulations (No. 3) 2014.

#### 2. Commencement

- (a) regulations 1 and 2 on the day on which these regulations are published in the *Gazette*;
- (b) the rest of the regulations on the day after that day.

#### 3. **Regulations amended**

These regulations amend the Vocational Education and Training (General) Regulations 2009.

#### 4. **Regulation 38 amended**

After regulation 38(2) insert:

- (3A) A training contract must specify a default maximum time of 9 months employment under that contract, or such lesser time as may be mutually agreed by the parties, before any competency based wage progression clause in an award can be invoked using units gained institutionally.
- (3B) In subregulation (3A) —

*units gained institutionally* means units gained as part of a prior qualification such as a pre-apprenticeship, but does not include units attained by fulfilling the obligations of an apprentice under a training contract.

#### 5. Schedule 1 amended

In Schedule 1 in the Training Contract Obligations in the provision with the heading "For the employer, apprentice or trainee, and parent or guardian (where applicable). We agree that:":

(a) in paragraph i) delete "legislation." and insert:

legislation;

- (b) after paragraph i) insert:
- j) any competency based wage progression clause, in an award that this Contract is subject to, cannot be invoked using units gained institutionally\*\*, until
  - i) the apprentice has completed 9 months of employment in this Contract; or
  - ii) the apprentice has completed, in this Contract, a period of employment mutually agreed by parties to the Contract. The period may be shorter than the 9 month requirement.
  - \*\* units gained institutionally means units gained as part of a prior qualification such as a pre-apprenticeship, but does not include units attained by fulfilling the obligations of an apprentice under a training contract.

R. KENNEDY, Clerk of the Executive Council.

## — PART 2 —

#### AGRICULTURE AND FOOD

AG401\*

#### AGRICULTURE AND RELATED RESOURCES PROTECTION (EUROPEAN HOUSE BORER) REGULATIONS 2006

GNANGARA RESTRICTED MOVEMENT ZONE

New finds of European house borer (EHB) in the Gnangara Restricted Movement Zone (RMZ) previously determined under regulation 18A of the *Agriculture and Related Resources Protection* (European House Borer) Regulations 2006 have resulted in slight alterations to boundary descriptions.

The Gnangara RMZ identified below replaces the identification of the Gnangara RMZ published in the Gazette on 3 September 2010.

Because of proximity to infested pinewood, the movement of pinewood in this area is restricted. Details of the restrictions are as follows—

#### Bringing untreated pinewood into RMZ

Movement is not generally restricted. However, a person may be issued a written notice prohibiting pinewood movement into the RMZ if an authorised person believes that the presence of the pinewood in the RMZ will increase the risk of EHB spread.

#### Removing pinewood from RMZ

Untreated seasoned pinewood that has been in an RMZ for 72 hours or more must not be removed from that RMZ unless—

- The pinewood is pinewood pieces of less than 100 cm<sup>3</sup>; or
- The pinewood has been stored in a suitable building or enclosure or has been fully enclosed in plastic wrapping or other authorised material to prevent exposure to EHB; or
- The pinewood has been treated with a preservative in accordance with the relevant standards; or
- The pinewood has been chemically fumigated or heat treated in accordance with the regulations; or
- Written authorisation has been given by an authorised person.

Note: "seasoned pinewood" is pinewood that has a moisture content of 20% or less when tested in accordance with the Australian Standard.

**Unseasoned pinewood** must not be removed from a RMZ during the control period (from 1 September until 30 April) unless the movement is authorised by an authorised person.

Visit the EHB website at agric.wa.gov.au/ehb or call 1800 084 881 for more information on the restrictions or for detailed maps of RMZs.

#### **IDENTIFICATION OF THE GNANGARA RESTRICTED MOVEMENT ZONE**

The area described below is identified as the Gnangara RMZ-

Area of the state bordered by Great Northern Highway/Morrissey Rd, east to end, follow parcel boundaries south-east/north to southern boundary parcel 40042406, east/north to join Sabre Cl, east to Jenkins Rd, south-east to Coventry Crsg, east/north to Catsbells Av, east to Ashmere Dr, south to Chittering Rd, north-east to Meadowbrook Rmbl, south-east to Meadowbrook Rmbl, south-east to Avondale Grn and continue 260 meters, south/east/south along parcel boundary to include parcel numbers 22749750 and 22517010 to Linzer Pl, south to Jess Rd, west to Ridgetop Trl, south to parcel boundaries, continue south along parcel boundaries to join Hillside Pl, south to Smith Rd, west to Taylor Rd, south 875 meters to parcel 22507050 southern boundary, follow parcel boundaries west to parcel 22506880, west/south/west/north/west/south to northern boundary of parcel 22507160, west/south/west/south to parcel 22507780 boundary, south/south-east/south-west/west to Great Northern Hwy, south to Upper Swan Suburb boundary, east to Brigadoon Suburb boundary follow east/south/west/south/west to Baskerville Suburb boundary, follow boundary south to Red Hill suburb boundary, follow south to Toodyay Rd, south-west/northwest/south/south-west along Midland Suburb boundary, west along Woodbridge Suburb boundary north along Viveash Suburb boundary, west along Caversham Av to West Swan Rd, south to Harper St, west to eastern edge of Whiteman Park boundary and follow north/west/north to Benara Rd, west to Lord St, north / north-west to Marshall Rd, west to

Beechboro Rd North, north to walking track gates (north of Baal St), west to Park St, west along Kingsway to 'City of Wanneroo Structure Plan 7 Boundary', north to Gnangara Rd, west to Priest road, south to Pollino Gdns, south-west to Mirrabooka Ave, south to Furniss Rd, west to MacDermott Pde, south to Eglinton Dr, west to Tyrone Dr, continue west onto Sutton wy then Tullamore Dr, west to Portroe Wy, south to Belvoir Pkwy, east/south/east/south/west/south to Goldsmith Wy, south to Westport Pde, west to Carripan Rd, south to Kingsway Bvd, west to Regency Ave, north to Russell Rd, west to Martindale Ave, north to Lockeport App, west to Susan Rd, north-west to Gnangara Rd, west to Wanneroo Rd, north to Ocean Reef Rd, west to Edgewater Dr, north to Hindmarsh Wy, west to Lakeside Dr, north to Shenton Av, west to Grand Bvd, north-west to Joondalup Dr, north/east to Wanneroo Rd, north to Yanchep Beach Rd, north-west to proposed Mitchell Fwy, north to Yanchep Suburb boundary, follow boundary north to Caraban Rd, north-west to Wabling Rd, east to Military Rd, south to Redwood Rd, east to Nuytsia Rd, south-west then south-east to Casuarina Rd, south to Airforce Rd, east to Rosella Rd, south then east to Clover Rd, east to High Hill Rd, south to RAAF Boundary Rd, west to Rosella Rd, south then south-west to Perry Rd, south to 'Unnamed Roads', east to City of Wanneroo shire boundary, east to City of Swan Shire Boundary, east along boundary to Muchea South Rd, south to Morley Rd, go east along parcel boundaries (200m south of this road) to Great Northern Hwy/Morrissey Rd.

ROB DELANE, Director General.

## **CONSUMER PROTECTION**

#### CP401\*

## ASSOCIATIONS INCORPORATION ACT 1987

REINSTATED ASSOCIATION

HOBIE CAT ASSOCIATION OF W.A.-A0760118X

Notice is hereby given that the incorporation of the above-named association has been re-instated pursuant to Section 35(4) of the Associations Incorporation Act 1987.

Dated: 9 December 2014.

DAVID HILLYARD, Director, Retail and Services for Commissioner for Consumer Protection.

## CULTURE AND THE ARTS

CZ401\*

LIBRARY BOARD OF WESTERN AUSTRALIA ACT 1951 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN AND VICE CHAIRMAN OF THE LIBRARY BOARD OF WESTERN AUSTRALIA

State Library of Western Australia.

It is hereby notified for public information that Emeritus Professor Margaret Nowak has been appointed to the position of Chairman of the Library Board of Western Australia for 2015. Cr Deb Hamblin has been appointed to the position of Vice Chairman of the Library Board of Western

Cr Deb Hamblin has been appointed to the position of Vice Chairman of the Library Board of Western Australia for 2015.

MARGARET ALLEN, Chief Executive Officer and State Librarian.

## HEALTH

### HE401\*

## HEALTH SERVICES (QUALITY IMPROVEMENT) ACT 1994 HEALTH SERVICES (QUALITY IMPROVEMENT) (APPROVED

COMMITTEE) ORDER (NO. 3) 2014

Made by the Executive Director, Patient Safety and Clinical Quality Division (as delegate of the Minister for Health) pursuant to section 7(1) of the *Health Services (Quality Improvement) Act 1994.* 

### Citation

1. This order may be cited as the Health Services (Quality Improvement) (Approved Committee) Order (No. 3) 2014.

#### Commencement

2. This order comes into operation on the day on which it is published in the Government Gazette.

#### Committee

3. It is declared that the Clinical Review Committee established by Perth Clinic Board of Directors is an approved quality improvement committee for the purposes of the *Health Services (Quality Improvement) Act 1994.* 

### Expiry of order

4. This order expires three years after its commencement.

Dated this 8th day of December 2014.

OLLY CAMPBELL, A/Executive Director, Office of Patient Safety and Clinical Quality.

HE402\*

### **HEALTH SERVICES (QUALITY IMPROVEMENT) ACT 1994**

HEALTH SERVICES (QUALITY IMPROVEMENT) (APPROVED COMMITTEE) ORDER (NO. 4) 2014

COMMITTEE) ORDER (NO. 4) 2014

Made by the Executive Director, Patient Safety and Clinical Quality Division (as delegate of the Minister for Health) pursuant to section 7(1) of the *Health Services (Quality Improvement) Act 1994.* 

### Citation

1. This order may be cited as the Health Services (Quality Improvement) (Approved Committee) Order (No. 4) 2014.

### Commencement

2. This order comes into operation on the day on which it is published in the *Government Gazette*.

#### Committee

3. The declaration that Quality Improvement Committee Committee established by the Director General of Health in his capacity as the Board of BreastScreen WA is an approved quality improvement committee for the purposes of the *Health Services (Quality Improvement) Act 1994.* 

### Expiry of order

4. This order expires three years after its commencement.

Dated this 8th day of December 2014.

OLLY CAMPBELL, A/Executive Director, Office of Patient Safety and Clinical Quality.

HE403\*

## HEALTH SERVICES (QUALITY IMPROVEMENT) ACT 1994

HEALTH SERVICES (QUALITY IMPROVEMENT) (APPROVED COMMITTEE) ORDER (NO. 5) 2014

Made by the Executive Director, Patient Safety and Clinical Quality Division (as delegate of the Minister for Health) pursuant to section 7(1) of the *Health Services (Quality Improvement) Act 1994.* 

#### Citation

1. This order may be cited as the Health Services (Quality Improvement) (Approved Committee) Order (No. 5) 2014.

#### Commencement

2. This order comes into operation on the day on which it is published in the Government Gazette.

#### Committee

3. It is declared that the Clinical Review Committee established by Mount Hospital Board of Directors is an approved quality improvement committee for the purposes of the *Health Services (Quality Improvement) Act 1994.* 

### Expiry of order

4. This order expires three years after its commencement. Dated this 9th day of December 2014.

OLLY CAMPBELL, A/Executive Director, Office of Patient Safety and Clinical Quality.

## JUSTICE

## JU401\*

## JUSTICES OF THE PEACE ACT 2004

RESIGNATIONS

It is hereby notified for public information that the Minister has accepted the resignation of—

Mr Nicol Nairn Briggs of Hamilton Hill WA

Mr John Dudley Carr of Churchlands WA

Mr Christiaan Melgeorge Petrus Van Der Merwe of Kingscote SA

from the Office of Justice of the Peace for the State of Western Australia.

RAY WARNES, Executive Director, Court and Tribunal Services.

JU402\*

### JUSTICES OF THE PEACE ACT 2004 APPOINTMENTS

It is hereby notified for public information that Her Excellency the Governor in Executive Council has approved of the following to the Office of Justice of the Peace for the State of Western Australia—

Charlotte Della Vedova of Loc 16 Lot 104 Fisheries Road, Condingup

Scott Gregory Phillips of 82 Armadale Crescent, Coolbinia

RAY WARNES, Executive Director, Court and Tribunal Services.

JU403\*

### **PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS ACT 1997**

AUSTRALIAN COMPUTER SOCIETY PROFESSIONAL STANDARDS SCHEME

Pursuant to section 44A(2) of the *Professional Standards Act 1997* (WA), I Michael Mischin MLC, Attorney General, authorise the extension of the Australian Computer Society Professional Standards Scheme to 31 December 2015.

Dated 1 December 2014.

## LOCAL GOVERNMENT

LG401\*

## DOG ACT 1976

CAT ACT 2011 City of Nedlands

APPOINTMENTS

Notice is hereby given for public information that the following persons have been appointed as Registration Officers under the provision of the  $Dog \ Act \ 1976$  and the  $Cat \ Act \ 2011$  for the City of Nedlands, effective 20 November 2014—

Judith Margaret Denton Edith Margaret Smart

Patricia Alexis Barker

Tanya Rochelle Burridge

Dated: 4 December 2014.

GREG TREVASKIS, Chief Executive Officer.

### LG402\*

### CITY OF NEDLANDS APPOINTMENT

Notice is hereby given for public information that Jessica Dorothy Wotherspoon has been appointed by Council as an Authorised Officer for the City of Nedlands pursuant to the following—

- 1. To exercise power under Part 20 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1960;
- 2. Section 449 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1960, as Pound Keeper and Ranger;
- 3. Part 9 Division 2 of the Local Government Act 1995;
- 4. Section 9.13, 9.15 of the Local Government Act 1995 as an Authorised Officer;
- 5. Part 3 subdivision 4 of the Local Government Act 1995;
- 6. Section 3.39 of the Local Government Act 1995 as an Authorised Officer; and

as an Authorised Officer pursuant to the following-

- Dog Act 1976 and Regulations;
- Cat Act 2011 and Regulations;
- Control of Vehicles (Off-road areas) Act 1978 and Regulations;
- Litter Act 1979 and Regulations;
- Bush Fires Act 1954 and Regulations;
- Tobacco Products Control Act 2006;
- Caravan Parks and Camping Grounds Act 1995 and Regulations;
- City of Nedlands Local Laws—Authorised Officer; and for
- Effecting general Ranger Duties as directed with the gazetted area of the City of Nedlands.

Dated: 4 December 2014.

## **MARINE/MARITIME**

#### MA401\*

#### WESTERN AUSTRALIAN MARINE ACT 1982

CLOSURE OF NAVIGABLE WATERS

Closed Waters Order—Aerial Freestyle Device

Mangles Bay—Mandurah—Broome—Hillarys—Fremantle Champion Lakes, Armadale, Western Australia

> Department of Transport Fremantle WA, 12 December 2014.

Acting pursuant to the power in section 66 of the *Western Australian Marine Act 1982*, I, Christopher Mather, Director Waterways Safety Management and delegate of the chief executive officer, hereby cancel the water closure order Notice MA401 as published in the *Government Gazette* on 24 October 2014 and hereby close all navigable waters to the operation of personal watercraft (PWC) fitted with an aerial freestyle device, with the exception of all waters within an approved Aerial Freestyle Area as described in Schedule A of this notice, provided they are operated in accordance with the conditions set out in Schedule B of this notice.

## NAVIGABLE WATERS includes-

- (a) The territorial sea adjacent to the State;
- (b) The sea on the landward side of the territorial sea adjacent to the State that is not within the limits of the State; and
- (c) Waters within the limits of the State.

In this notice, the following definitions apply—

- 1. The aerial freestyle device means any device, Flyboard® or alike, which can be connected to a PWC so as to provide pressured water from the PWC to the device to aid propulsion at the surface of the water, into the air and/or underwater;
- 2. The aerial freestyle device user means the person attached to the aerial freestyle device PWC means as per definition at regulation 46 (2) of the *Navigable Waters Regulations 1958*;
- 3. The PWC operator means the person who is the rider and master of the PWC;
- 4. Aerial Freestyle means the practice of manoeuvring the aerial freestyle device above the surface of the water or deliberately fully submerging the aerial freestyle device user below the surface of the water.

### SCHEDULE A-

- ROCKINGHAM: All those waters of Mangles Bay bounded by lines commencing at position 32°16.271'S, 115°43.884'E (approximately 230 metres north-west of the Bell Park foreshore at Rockingham Beach); thence to 32°16.201'S, 115°43.981'E (200 metres north-easterly); thence to 32°16.234'S, 115°44.014'E (80 metres south-easterly); thence to 32°16.308'S, 115°43.911'E (approximately 211 metres south-westerly); thence to the point of commencement (approximately 81 metres north-westerly). All coordinates based on GDA 94.
- MANDURAH (COMMERCIAL OPERATIONS ONLY): All those waters of the Mandurah Estuary bounded by lines commencing at 32°31.8897'S, 115°43.0663'E (approximately 400 metres north of the centre of the old Mandurah Traffic Bridge); thence to 32°31.8917'S, 115°43.0811'E (approximately 23 metres easterly); thence to 32°31.9288'S, 115°43.0877'E (approximately 70 metres southerly); thence to 32°31.9345'S, 115°43.0728'E (approximately 25 metres westerly); thence to the point of commencement (approximately 83 metres northerly). All coordinates based on GDA94.
- BROOME: All those waters of the Indian Ocean bounded by the shoreline and line commencing on the foreshore at Cable Beach and extending through 17°55.305'S, 122°12.675'E to 17°55.285'S, 122°12.043'E (approximately 1100 metres westerly); thence to 17°55.046'S, 122°12.043'E (approximately 440 metres northerly); thence through 17°55.114'S, 122°12.662'E (approximately 1100 metres easterly) to the shore. All coordinates based on GDA94.
- HILLARYS (COMMERCIAL OPERATIONS ONLY): All those waters of the Indian Ocean bounded by lines commencing at 31°49.291'S, 115°44.096'E (approximately 130 metres north of the Accessible Fishing Platform on the Northern Breakwater); thence to 31°49.247'S, 115°44.058'E (approximately 100 metres north-westerly); thence to 31°49.215'S, 115°44.109'E (approximately 100 metres north-easterly); thence to 31°49.258'S, 115°44.147'E (approximately 100 metres south-easterly); thence to the point of commencement (approximately 100 metres south-westerly). All coordinates based on GDA 94.
- FREMANTLE: All those waters of the Indian Ocean bounded by lines commencing at 32°03.494'S, 115°44.376'E (approximately 200 metres west of Bathers Beach, Fremantle); thence to 32°03.534'S, 115°44.376'E (approximately 65 metres southerly); thence to 32°03.534'S, 115°44.325'E (approximately 80 metres westerly); thence to 32°03.493'S, 115°44.325'E (approximately 65 metres northerly); thence easterly approximately 80 metres to the point of commencement. All coordinates based on GDA94.

CHAMPION LAKES (COMMERCIAL OPERATIONS ONLY ) All those waters of Champion Lakes, Armadale, bounded by lines commencing at 32°06.128′S, 116°00.247′E (approximately 35 metres south-east of the boat ramp); thence to 32°06.157′S, 116°00.273′E (approximately 65 metres south-east); thence to 32°06.288′S, 116°00.152′E (approximately 110 metres southwest); thence to 32°06.255′S, 116°00.105′E (approximately 95 metres north-west); thence to the point of commencement (approximately 320 metres north-east). All coordinates based on GDA 94.

#### SCHEDULE B-

#### **Operating Conditions**

1. Only one person is to use the Aerial Freestyle device at any one time;

2. The Aerial Freestyle device user must be at least 14 years of age;

3. Propulsion thrust to the Aerial Freestyle device must be controlled by the PWC operator at all times;

4. When the Aerial Freestyle device is being operated connected to a PWC, the PWC operator and the Aerial Freestyle device user must wear an approved personal flotation device as described in regulation 50B of the *Navigable Waters Regulations 1958*;

5. The PWC operator must hold a Recreational Skippers Ticket as per regulation 47 of the *Navigable Waters Regulations 1958*;

6. Whilst in operation, the PWC operator must have a PWC kill switch safety lanyard attached to them at all times;

7. Whilst in operation, the Aerial Freestyle device user must wear a helmet suitable for water sports at all times

8. The PWC must be appropriately registered for operation in Western Australia as per regulation 45B of the *Navigable Waters Regulations 1958* or as a Domestic Commercial Vessel in accordance with the *Marine Safety (Domestic Commercial Vessels) National Law Act 2012*;

9. The Aerial Freestyle device user must not engage in aerial freestyle outside of a designated aerial freestyle area;

10. The Aerial Freestyle device user must not engage in aerial freestyle within 15 metres of any other person or any other vessel;

11. The Aerial Freestyle device user must not engage in aerial freestyle in water depth less than 2.5 metres;

12. The Aerial Freestyle device user must not engage in deliberate porpoising in water depths less than 4 metres;

13. The Aerial Freestyle device can only be operated during sunrise to sunset;

14. General safety obligations, collision regulations and any other legislative requirements that apply to either a recreational or commercial personal water craft under the *Navigable Waters Regulations* 1958 and *Western Australian Marine Act 1982* must be complied with at all times.

15. In addition to above, Commercial Aerial Freestyle operations must operate in accordance with any Certificate of Survey and Certificate of Operation issued for the vessel under the *Marine Safety* (Domestic Commercial Vessels) National Law Act 2012.

16. Areas used for Commercial Operations must be clearly marked by buoys indicating the limits of the area by the commercial operator, during hours of operation.

CHRISTOPHER MATHER, Director Waterways Safety Management, Department of Transport.

MA402\*

NAVIGABLE WATERS REGULATIONS 1958 PERSONAL WATERCRAFT (PWC) PWC Freestyle Driving Swan and Canning Rivers

Department of Transport

Fremantle WA, 12 December 2014.

Acting pursuant to the powers conferred by Section 50A of the *Navigable Waters Regulations 1958*, I hereby cancel Notice MA402 as published in the *Government Gazette* on 1 November 2013 and prohibit the practices of personal watercraft freestyle driving, wave jumping and surfing in the Swan and Canning Rivers, with the exception of the following areas—

Narrows—Personal Watercraft (PWC) Freestyle Driving Area: All waters bounded by the shore and a line commencing at 31°58.010'S, 115°50.690'E (on the shore adjacent the Mill Point boat ramp); thence south-westerly 790 metres to the Quarry Spit Starboard Beacon No. 1 at approximately 31°58.270'S, 115°50.291'E; thence southerly approximately 1100 metres to 31°58.866'S, 115°50.282'E; thence north-easterly approximately 1225 metres to 31°58.340'S, 115°50.755'E; thence northerly approximately 470 metres to 31°58.088'S, 115°50.720'E (on the end of the second groyne south from the Narrows). All coordinates based on GDA 94. Perth Waters—Commercial Personal Watercraft (PWC) Freestyle Driving Area: All waters of the Swan River within 340 metres of position 31°57.983'S, 115°50.997'E (corresponding to a point on the South Perth foreshore approximately 70 metres downstream of the Queen Street Jetty). Coordinates based on GDA94.

Providing however that both areas may only be used, between the hours of Sunrise and Sunset.

CHRISTOPHER MATHER, Director Waterways Safety Management, Department of Transport.

## MINERALS AND PETROLEUM

**MP401\*** 

## PETROLEUM AND GEOTHERMAL ENERGY RESOURCES ACT 1967

GRANT OF PETROLEUM RETENTION LEASE R 6

Petroleum Retention Lease R 6 has been granted to Latent Petroleum Pty Ltd and Alcoa of Australia Limited to have effect for a period of five (5) years from and including 5 December 2014.

JEFFREY HAWORTH, Executive Director, Petroleum Division, Department of Mines and Petroleum.

MP402\*

### **PETROLEUM AND GEOTHERMAL ENERGY RESOURCES ACT 1967** GRANT OF PETROLEUM RETENTION LEASE R 7

Petroleum Retention Lease R 7 has been granted to Latent Petroleum Pty Ltd and Alcoa of Australia Limited to have effect for a period of five (5) years from and including 5 December 2014.

JEFFREY HAWORTH, Executive Director, Petroleum Division, Department of Mines and Petroleum.

#### MP403\*

## PETROLEUM AND GEOTHERMAL ENERGY RESOURCES ACT 1967 RENEWAL OF PETROLEUM EXPLORATION PERMIT EP 321

Renewal of Petroleum Exploration Permit EP 321 has been granted to Latent Petroleum Pty Ltd and Alcoa of Australia Limited and will remain in force for a period of five (5) years commencing on 5 December 2014.

JEFFREY HAWORTH, Executive Director, Petroleum Division, Department of Mines and Petroleum.

**MP404\*** 

#### MINING ACT 1978

APPLICATION FOR AN ORDER FOR FORFEITURE

Department of Mines and Petroleum, Norseman WA 6443.

In accordance with Regulation 49(2)(c) of the *Mining Regulations 1981*, notice is hereby given that the following licences are liable to forfeiture under the provision of Section 96(1)(a) of the *Mining Act 1978* for breach of covenant, being failure to comply with the prescribed expenditure conditions and/or non-compliance with the expenditure conditions.

T. HALL, Warden.

To be heard by the Warden at Norseman on 20 January 2015.

DUNDAS MINERAL FIELD

Prospecting Licences

- P 63/1894 Goldcrush Corporation Pty Ltd
- P 63/1895 Goldcrush Corporation Pty Ltd
- P 63/1896 Goldcrush Corporation Pty Ltd

#### **MP405\***

## MINING ACT 1978

APPLICATION FOR AN ORDER FOR FORFEITURE

Department of Mines and Petroleum,

Norseman WA 6443.

In accordance with Regulation 49(2)(c) of the *Mining Regulations 1981*, notice is hereby given that the following licences are liable to forfeiture under the provision of Section 96(1)(a) of the *Mining Act 1978* for breach of covenant, being failure to comply with the prescribed expenditure conditions and/or non-compliance with the reporting provisions.

T. HALL, Warden.

To be heard by the Warden at Norseman on 20 January 2015.

## DUNDAS MINERAL FIELD

Prospecting Licences

P 63/1362 Royal Resources Ltd P 63/1363 Royal Resources Ltd

## PARLIAMENT

### PA401\*

## PARLIAMENT OF WESTERN AUSTRALIA

Royal Assent to Bills

It is hereby notified for public information that the Governor has Assented in the name and on behalf of Her Majesty the Queen, on the date shown, to the undermentioned Act passed by the Legislative Council and the Legislative Assembly during the First Session of the Thirty-Ninth Parliament.

#### Title of Act

Corruption and Crime Commission Amendment (Misconduct) Act 2014 Date of Assent Act No.

9 December 2014 35 of 2014

Dated 10 December 2014.

NIGEL PRATT, Clerk of the Parliaments.

## PLANNING

PL401\*

## PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT ACT 2005

APPROVED LOCAL PLANNING SCHEME AMENDMENT City of Canning

Town Planning Scheme No. 23—Amendment No. 17

Ref: TPS/1116

It is hereby notified for public information, in accordance with section 87 of the *Planning and Development Act 2005* that the Minister for Planning approved the City of Canning local planning scheme amendment on 24 September 2014 for the purpose of excising Lot 3367 Latham Road, Ferndale and Lot 50 Kinlock Avenue, Ferndale from Town Planning Scheme No 23—Lynwood/Ferndale Guided Development Scheme.

L. REYNOLDS, Commissioner. L. RUSSELL, Chief Executive Officer.

#### PL402\*

## PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT ACT 2005

APPROVED LOCAL PLANNING SCHEME AMENDMENT

Shire of Derby/West Kimberley

Town Planning Scheme No. 5-Amendment No. 16

Ref: TPS/0491

It is hereby notified for public information, in accordance with section 87 of the *Planning and Development Act 2005* that the Minister for Planning approved the Shire of Derby/West Kimberley local planning scheme amendment on 17 November 2014 for the purpose of—

Amending the Scheme Map by—

- 1. Rezoning of the balance of Lot 61 Dampier Drive, Derby from 'Rural' to 'Residential' being the total area of the lot excluding the north-west corner of the lot which abuts Dampier Drive and which extends from the western lot boundary, which abuts Forrest Street through to the eastern lot boundary, which abuts Lot 62 and which extends to a depth of 90m from Dampier Drive.
- 2. A Residential Density Codes in line with the following corresponding Lots being allocated to the 'Residential' zone.
  - R40 to the proposed Lots 1, 6, 53, 62, 125 and 137
  - R35 to the proposed Lots 23, 34, 42, 82, 117 and 122
  - R30 to the proposed Lots 54 and 190
  - R20 to the proposed Lot 123 and 184
  - R10 to the proposed Lots 191 to 210
  - R17.5 to all other proposed residential Lots
- 3. Amending the Scheme Map by removing the delineation of 'Residential Development Area' from around the balance of Lot 61 Dampier Drive, which is the subject of this residential rezoning.

E. M. ARCHER, President. G. MARTIN, Acting Chief Executive Officer.

PL403\*

## PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT ACT 2005

APPROVED LOCAL PLANNING SCHEME AMENDMENT

Shire of Derby/West Kimberley

Town Planning Scheme No. 5-Amendment No. 20

Ref: TPS/1410

It is hereby notified for public information, in accordance with section 87 of the *Planning and Development Act 2005* that the Minister for Planning approved the Shire of Derby/West Kimberley local planning scheme amendment on 17 November 2014 for the purpose of—

- 1. Rezoning Lot 519 Clarendon Street from Residential R15 and Public Purpose 'RFD' to Residential R30 and Public Purpose 'Community Purpose'.
- 2. Amending the Scheme Map accordingly.

E. M. ARCHER, President. G. MARTIN, Acting Chief Executive Officer.

PL404\*

#### PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT ACT 2005

APPROVED LOCAL PLANNING SCHEME AMENDMENT Shire of Derby/West Kimberley Town Planning Scheme No. 5—Amendment No. 23

Ref: TPS/1411

It is hereby notified for public information, in accordance with section 87 of the *Planning and Development Act 2005* that the Minister for Planning approved the Shire of Derby/West Kimberley local planning scheme amendment on 17 November 2014 for the purpose of—

Rezoning 175 Loch Street, Derby from "Residential R5" to "Residential R30", and amending the Scheme Map accordingly.

E. M. ARCHER, President. G. MARTIN, Acting Chief Executive Officer.

## **PREMIER AND CABINET**

### PR401\*

### AGENT GENERAL ACT 1895

APPOINTMENT OF AGENT GENERAL

It is notified for public information that the Governor, in Executive Council, has appointed Mr Kevin Leslie Skipworth CVO JP as the Agent General for Western Australia, for the period 1 January 2015 to 30 April 2015 (both dates inclusive).

PETER CONRAN, Director General, Department of the Premier and Cabinet.

## **DECEASED ESTATES**

ZX401

## TRUSTEES ACT 1962

DECEASED ESTATES

#### Notice to Creditors and Claimants

Pearl Gloria McCulloch, late of Unit 5, 9 Louise Street, Rockingham in the State of Western Australia, deceased.

Creditors and other persons having claims (to which Section 63 of the *Trustees Act 1962*, relates) in respect of the estate of the deceased, who died on 7 September 2014, are required by the Executrix to send particulars of their claims to them care of Civic Legal, Suite 2, 35 McNicholl Street, Rockingham by 15 January 2015, after which date the Executrix may convey or distribute the assets having regard only to the claims of which they then have notice.

CIVIC LEGAL, as Solicitors for the Executrix.

#### ZX402\*

## TRUSTEES ACT 1962

DECEASED ESTATES

#### Notice to Creditors and Claimants

Robert Parker Millner, late of 3205 Bailup Road, Wooroloo in the State of Western Australia, Farmer/Grazier, deceased.

Creditors and other persons having claims (to which Section 63 of the *Trustees Act 1962*, relates) in respect of the estate of the deceased, who died on 1 June 2014 at Swan District Hospital Campus, Middle Swan in the State of Western Australia, are required by the trustees Michael John Millner, Robyn Jane Robinson and Mary Louise Weal, c/- Avon Legal Suite 7, 9 The Avenue, Midland in the State of Western Australia to send particulars of their claims to them within 30 days of this notice, after which date the trustees may convey or distribute the assets, having regard only to the claims of which they then have notice.

ZX403

## **TRUSTEES ACT 1962** DECEASED ESTATES

Notice to Creditors and Claimants

Basil Everard Hermon, late of 126 Waratah Avenue, Dalkeith in the State of Western Australia, deceased.

Creditors and other persons having claims (to which Section 63 of the *Trustees Act 1962*, relates) in respect of the estate of the deceased, who died on 24 April 2014, are required by the personal representatives, Patricia Katherine Pulford and Denis Everard Hermon care of MKI Legal, Suite 16, 4 Ventnor Avenue, West Perth in the State of Western Australia to send particulars of their claims to them by 13 January 2015, after which date the personal representatives may convey or distribute the assets, having regard only to the claims of which they then have notice.

### ZX404

## **TRUSTEES ACT 1962**

#### DECEASED ESTATES

#### Notice to Creditors and Claimants

In the matter of the Estate of John Ronald Ruane, late of 16 Arlington Avenue, South Perth in the State of Western Australia, Real Estate Salesman/Manager, deceased.

Creditors and other persons having claims (to which Section 63 of the *Trustees Act 1962*, relates) in respect of the estate of the deceased, who died on 15 August 2014, are required by the Executor of care of Rockwell Olivier, Level 8, Wesfarmers House, 40 The Esplanade, Perth in the said State to send the particulars of their claims to Rockwell Olivier by 29 January 2015, after which date the Executor may convey or distribute the assets, having regard only to the claims of which he then has notice.

#### ZX405

## TRUSTEES ACT 1962

DECEASED ESTATES

Notice to Creditors and Claimants

Barbara Mary Creighton, late of RSL Menora Gardens Aged Care Facility, 51 Alexander Drive, Menora in the State of Western Australia, deceased.

Creditors and other persons having claims (to which Section 63 of the *Trustees Act 1962*, relates) in respect of the estate of the deceased, who died on 21 September 2014, are required by the personal representative to send particulars of their claims to him/her care of IRDI Legal, 248 Oxford Street, Leederville, Western Australia 6007 by 20 January 2015, after which date the personal representative may convey or distribute the assets having regard only to the claims of which he/she then has notice.

IRDI Legal, as solicitors for the personal representative.

ZX406\*

## TRUSTEES ACT 1962

## DECEASED ESTATES

#### Notice to Creditors and Claimants

Creditors and other persons having claims (to which Section 63 of the *Trustees Act 1962*, relates) in respect of the Estates of the undermentioned deceased persons are required to send particulars of their claims to me, on or before 12 January 2015, after which date I may convey or distribute the assets, having regard only to the claims of which I then have notice.

Brophy, Troy, late of 9c Cohn Court, Willagee, died 17.05.2013 (DE33109741 EM32)

- Chatfield, Albert Edward, late of Regents Garden Resort, 33 Drovers Place, Wanneroo, formerly of 29 Whitely Street, Hamersley, died 10.10.2014 (DE19752918 EM38)
- Hagan, Carolyn Dale, late of Craiglea Park Nursing Home, 38 Alday Street, St James, formerly of 6 Russelia Way, Roleystone, died 8.06.2014 (DE33114052 EM32)

Kotsoglo, Panaghiota, Also Known As Panaghiota Kotsogla and Giota Tsipira-Kotsoglo, late of Unit 81 96 Guildford Road, Mount Lawley, died 18.08.2014 (DE33118637 EM35)

Krepp, Friedrich, late of St Michaels Nursing Home, 53 Wasley Street, North Perth, died 10.11.2014 (DE19861705 EM13)

Leggett, Geoffrey William, late of 12 Ripple Way, Bateman, died 18.07.2014 (DE19822997 EM38)

Mitchell, Roy Albert, late of 70 Fourth Avenue, Mount Lawley, died 8.09.2014 (DE19972118 EM23)

Tomec, Josef, late of 7 Steward Way, Orelia, died 2.10.2014 (DE19754168 EM24)

Van Der Merwe, Willem Roux, late of 1 Robertson Place, Bibra Lake, died 23.09.2014 (DE33098561 EM110)

Ward, Thomas, late of 4a Cedar Court, Spearwood, died 1.09.2014 (DE33049999 EM15)

West, Livingston, Also Known As Livingstone West, late of Warburton Community via Alice Springs 0870, died 4.02.2013 (DE33111358 EM37)

BRIAN ROCHE, Public Trustee, 553 Hay Street, Perth WA 6000. Telephone: 1300 746 212

# STATE LAW PUBLISHER SUBSCRIPTION RATES FOR 2015

All subscriptions are for the period from 1 January to 31 December 2015. Subject to certain limitations, refunds may be allowed if a subscription is cancelled during the year. The prices quoted include GST where applicable and postage by surface mail unless stated otherwise.

## **GOVERNMENT GAZETTE**

## STATUTES

GOVERNMENT GAZETTE	STATUTES
General <i>Government Gazettes</i> are published on Tuesday and Friday of each week, unless disrupted by public holidays or unforseen circumstances. Special <i>Government Gazettes</i> are published periodically on any day. <u>All Gazettes</u> \$ Within WA	Bound Statutes      Bound volumes are posted during March of the following year.      \$      Within WA
<b>Bound Volumes of full year</b> 1,385.00	Loose Statutes
INDUSTRIAL GAZETTE Industrial Gazette is published monthly. \$ Within WA	Statutes are posted weekly as they become available.      Within WA
HANSARD Hansard is printed and distributed weekly during parliamentary sessions. \$ Within WA	Sessional Bills Bills are posted weekly as they become available. Within WA
Bound Volumes of Hansard Within WA1,043.00 Interstate1,059.00	

## **CLAIMS FOR MISSING SUBSCRIPTION ITEMS**

For a claim to be recognised as valid, written notification must be lodged at State Law Publisher, 10 William Street, Perth 6000 within 28 days of publication of the missing item.

Claims lodged after this period will not be recognised and will attract payment in full.

Please debit my:	Uisa Card	I 🗌	MasterCard	
Card Number:				
Expiry date of ca	rd:/			
Name of card hol	der:			